PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

Survey #: P.G. #64-5 Building Date: 1860's

Building Name: Perkins Chapel

Location: Immediately north west of 8606 Springfield Road, Glenn Dale,
Maryland

Private/Religious/Unoccupied/Fair/Inaccessible

Description:

Perkins Chapel is a four-bay one-and-one-half-story gable-roofed frame
meeting house structure, ca. 37 feet by 26 feet. Entrance is through a
one-story gabled vestibule at the east gable end, through a panelled double
door surmounted by a 12-pane fanlight with plain board surround and
"keystone". Above the vestibule in the east gable end is a small round
louvered window with a rosette pattern. The east gable end has a boxed
cornice with brackets and pendants. The exterior is German siding painted
white. Around the chapel on three sides (north, west, and south) is a
gravyard with stones dating from 1871 to the present.

Significance:

Perkins Chapel was built during the division in the Methodist Episcopal
Church in the 1860's; it was an outgrowth of Pleasant Grove Methodist Church
which had been established in 1815. When the issue of slavery divided the
church along racial lines, James Turner Perkins, a white farmer with exten-
sive land holdings, offered an acre of his land a mile southeast of Pleasant
Grove for the purpose of erecting a new chapel. The buiiding was con-
structed in the mid-1860's, the deed was executed in 1869 and in the same
year the church was dedicated as "Perkins Chapel" in honor of its principal
sponsor. The old Pleasant Grove meeting house continued to serve the black
congregation until it closed in 1916.

Until 1927, Perkins Chapel was heated by wood stoves; in that year a
cellar was dry out under the chapel for installation of a coal furnace.
Perkins Chapel became a separate charge in 1958; the parsonage was completed
in the following year. At the same time, a 5 1/2-acre adjoining tract was
purchased, and a new brick church was completed in 1965. Perkins Chapel is
one of few suriving rural chapels from the mid-nineteenth century. Closely
associated with the Bladensburg, Whitefield-Lanham, and Pleasant Grove
Methodist Churches (none of which stands today), Perkins Chapel has served
its rural congregation for a full century, and remains a prominent landmark
in its rural setting.

Acreage: 2 acres
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State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _ yes _ no

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Perkins Chapel

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 1mmediately northwest of 8606 Springfield Road —___not for publication
city, town Glenn Dale ___ vicinity of congressional district 5
- ]
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
district public —_ occupied —__ agriculture —____museum
_X building(s) __X private X unoccupied . commercial . park
— structure . both _____work in progress - educational —x private residence
—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment religious
__ object - in process ___yes: restricted __ government scientific
— being considered —___ yes: unrestricted —_ industrial transportation
_X not applicable X no ___ military _X other: not used

4. owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Glenn Dale United Methodist Church
street & number 8500 Springfield Road telephone no.: 262-2299
city, town Glenn Dale state and zip code Md. 20769

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 444
street & number Main Street folio 422
city, town Upper Marlboro, state  Md. 20772

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

wtle  P-G. County Inventory of Historic Sites

1974

X
date — federal ___ _state ____county ___ local

pository for survey records History Division, M-NCPPC

i MD. 20737
city, town Riverdale, state




7. Description Survey No. P.G. #64-5

Condition Check one eck one

___excellent © ___ deteriorated unaltered ___ original site

____good —___ruins I altered —__ moved date of move
_X_ fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Perkins Chapel is a four-bay one-and-one-half-story gable-roofed frame
meeting-house structure, ca. 37 feet by 26 feet which faces roughly east.
Entrance is through a one-story gabled vestibule at the east gable end.
Entrance into this vestibule is a panelled double door surmounted by a
12-pane fanlight, with plain board surround and "keystone". There is a six-
light single sash window on each of the north and south side walls of the
vestibule. Above the vestibule in the east gable end is a small round
louvered window with a rosette pattern. The east gable end has a boxed
cornice with brackets with pendants.

The long sides of the building each have four 6/6 double sash windows,
with hinges for shutters, though there are presently no shutters attached.
At the west gable end is an interior chimney (20th century), and also a
small shed-roofed addition which allows access to the cellar.

The exterior is German siding, painted white. The foundations are
brick. The roof is new composition shingle; it was preceded by a cypress
shingle roof which was installed ca. 1940.

Until 1927 the meeting house was heated by wood stoves. In that year,
members of the congregation dug out a small cellar under the building and
installed a furnace. At that time the small entry-room was built onto the
west gable end to allow access to the furnace room.

Around the chapel on three sides (north, west and south) is a graveyard
with gravestones dating from 1871 to the present. Southeast of the grave-
yard is the brick parsonage. Further to the southeast, at the corner of
Springfield and Good Luck Roads, is the new brick church building. The
original small frame chapel stands at the highest and westernmost point of
the church property, which is surrounded by U.S. Department of Agriculture
lands. It faces the old country road from Vansville to Springfield and is a
prominent landmark in an undeveloped rural area.



8. Significance

P.G. #64-5

Survey No.

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below X

_ prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture_"___religion

_—_1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —___science

-1500-1599 _ agriculture ____economics ——_ literature — sculpture

__1600-1699 _ X architecture __ education —_ military —_ social/

— 17001799 ___ art ____engineering —— music humanitarian

_X _1800-1898 ___ commerce ____exploration/settiement ____ philosophy ___theater

— 1900~ ____ communications —_ industry — politics/government transportation
____invention X other (specity)

Tocal h1s€§ry
Specific dates 1860's Builder/Architect Samuel Anderson, carpenter
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B __C _ D
and/or

Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state __ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Perkins Chapel was built during the division in the Methodist
Episcopal Church in the 1860's; it was an outgrowth of the Pleasant Grove
Methodist Church which had been established in 1815. Pleasant Grove was
part of the Bladensburg Circuit of the Baltimore Conference of the Church.
When the issue of slavery divided the Methodist Church, the formerly mixed
congregation of Pleasant Grove was divided along racial lines. James
Turner Perkins, a white-farmer who had extensive land holdings in the
Vansville district, offered an acre of his land a mile southeast of
Pleasant Grove, for the purpose of erecting a new chapel. The building was
constructed in the mid-1860's, the deed was executed in 1869, and in the
same year the church was dedicated as "Perkins Chapel" in honor of its
principal sponsor.] The old Pleasant Grove meeting house continued to
serve the black congregation until it closed in 1916, at which time many of
its members joined the then newly built Ross Memorial Methodist Church in
Bowie.

Within a few years (1875) Perkins Chapel had joined Whitefield Chapel
in Lanham (established in 1837) and the new (1874) Bowie Methodist Church,
as a charge of the Bladensburg Circuit, served by a single pastor.3

There is some evidence that renovation of Perkins Chapel took place in
the last decade of the nineteenth century; it may be at this time that the
present German siding was added.

Until 1927 Perkins Chapel was heated by two pot-bellied wood stoves.
In that year, the Junior Missionary Society raised money:buy a coal
furnace, and then dug out a cellar under the chapel in which to install it.
They built piers to support the floor and a small entry-room at the rear
(west) of the building to provide access to the furnace room. The furnace
was functioning in time for the Christmas service of 1927.

In 1936, J.T. Perkins' son sold 115 acres of the Perkins farmland to
the Department of Agriculture. At this time he reserved two acres for the
church and burial grounds, thus doubling the or1g1na1 one-acre lot which
his parents had deeded in 1869.5



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. P.G. #64-5

P.G. Co. Deeds #2208: 423; #448:47275 #3:4/0; HB#3:425 ] )
Stones and Bones, P.G. Co. Genealogical Society 1983; "A History of Perkins Chapel.
Interview with pastor, July 1984; with church historian & members, July/August 1984,

Quarterly Conference Minutes, Bladensburg Circuit, Methodist Church South, 1842-1880.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 2 acres
Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UTM References 4o NOT complete UTM references :
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

namettitle Susan G. Pearl, Research Historian

organization Historic Preservation Commission date August 1984

(301) 952-3520

street & number C/0 County Planning Division, M-NCPPC telephone

city or town Upper Marlboro, state MD. 20772

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



P.G. #64-5

8. Significance (Continued)

In the 1950's there began a movement in Perkins Chapel to form a
single charge; this came about in 1958. In the same year Perkins Chapel
Methodist Church purchased from the U.S. Department of Agriculture 5 1/2
acres adjacent to the old chapel, and a new building program was initiated.
The parsonage was completed in the following year. The new brick church
building was begun in 1964 and completed in 1965.5 The old chapel has
been virtually unused for nearly a decade.

Perkins Chapel is one of few surviving rural chapels from the mid-
nine-teenth century. Closely associated with the Bladensburg,
Whitefield-Lanham and Pleasant Grove Methodist Churches (none of which
stands today), Perkins Chapel has served its rural congregation for a full
century, and remains a prominent landmark in its rural setting.

Footnotes

1 Prince George's County Deeds HB#3:425, AB#7:236. Bladensburg Circuit
Quarterly Conference Minutes. Prince George's County Census, 1870

2 Fourteenth Session of Washington District Conference, 1953: "Ross
Methodist Church, Bowie, Maryland."

3 wp History of Perkins Chapel"; Bladensburg Circuit Quarterly Confernce
Minutes, 1842-1880.

4 Interview with member John Jones, former president of Junior
Missionary Society, July 1984.

5 Prince George's County Deed #444:422

6 Prince George's County Deed #2208:423; interview with pastor, July
1984,




#444:.422

9 Apr 1936
Deed

#9:476

3 July 1902
Deed

HB #3:425
16 Jan 1869
Deed

Chain of Title

Perkins Chapel P.G. #64-5

E.E. Perkins et al to U.S.A., 114.69 acres except next
described portion specifically reserved for use as
church plot and family burial ground, 2 acres.

James N. Knowles, James B. Knowles, Milton Brickerd,
Thomas B. Middleton, Charles R. Chappel, Edward E.
Perkins and Clay D. Perkins, to the trustees of Perkins
Chapel Methodist Episcopal Church and their successors,
for $1.00, 1 acre of land, same as deeded by James and
Susan Perkins to Middelton et al, trustees, in
HB#3:425,

James T. and Susan Perkins for spirtual interest and
wellbeing of community, to F.W. Middleton, Basil
Talbert, Robert Morrison, James W. Middleton, and
Thomas Bond, trustees for Methodist Episcopal Church; 1
acre, to be kept and maintained and disposed of a place
of divine worship for the Methodist Episcopal Church.



#444:422
9 Apr 1936
Deed

#9:476
3 July 1902
Deed

HB #3:425
16 Jan 1869
Deed

Chain of Title

Perkins Chapel P.G. #64-5

E.E. Perkins et al to U.S.A., 114.69 acres except next
described portion specifically reserved for use as
church plot and family burial ground, 2 acres.

James N. Knowles, James B. Knowles, Milton Brickerd,
Thomas B. Middleton, Charles R. Chappel, Edward E.
Perkins and Clay D. Perkins, to the trustees of Perkins
Chapel Methodist Episcopal Church and their successors,
for $1.00, 1 acre of land, same as deeded by James and
Susan Perkins to Middelton et al, trustees, in
HB#3:425,

James T. and Susan Perkins for spirtual interest and
wellbeing of community, to F.W. Middleton, Basil
Talbert, Robert Morrison, James W. Middleton, and
Thomas Bond, trustees for Methodist Episcopal Church; 1
acre, to be kept and maintained and disposed of a place
of divine worship for the Methodist Episcopal Church.
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P.G. #64-5
Perkins Chapel
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
July 1984
Southeast elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD







P.G. #64-5
Perkins Chapel
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
July 1984
Southwest 3/4 elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD







P.G. #64-5
Perkins Chapel
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
July 1984

East elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD
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Perkins Chapel
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
July 1984

East elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD
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